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Sabils (Fountains)

Sabil means the road, in terms it is the place from which water is made permissible and available for God,s
sake. Moreover, form architecture pointit is a structural unit that functions to provide free water to needy
people, seeking for a reward from Allah.

Three of Jerusalem’s fountains referred to the Ayyubid period (1250-1187/648-583), two of them to
Mamluk time (1517-1250/922-648), but most of them (13 sabils) referred to the Ottoman period (-922
1917-1517/1336). It is noted that most of the founders of these fountains are sultans, princes, governors,
and senior staff. Out of the 18 sabils, we find that three were constructed by ordinary citizens. The list
includes the following fountains:
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Sabilad-Kas

It is a large open circular basin of water, covered with marble from outside, and it has a water fountain
in the middle. Stone benches are set around the basin to allow worshipers to use the water which flows
from the taps of the walls of the sabil. The fountain is located between the Dome of the Rock and Al-Agsa
mosque building, which creates a connection between the two buildings. It is founded by Sultan Al-‘Adel
Abu Bakar Bin Ayyub in the year 1193/589, and then it was repaired by Amir Saif Al-Din Tankiz, the Sultan
Deputy of Syria in the year 1329/728.The ottomans linked it with sabil channel in eighteenth century, and
16 marble chairs were added by the high Islamic council in the thirties of the twenty century. The scheme
of this sabil is unique and it is one of the well-known landmarks of Al-Agsa mosque where worshipers are
gathered around during Friday prayers and feasts.
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Cistern of ad-Malil ad-Vi' zum [ra

The function of this sabil has been stopped, and it is currently being used as a medical clinic for the Al-Agsa
Mosque. Originally it was composed of three aisles covered with cross-vaults. The cistern is situated in the
area between the western colonnade and the south-western colonnade of the Dome of the Rock plaza,
but at the level of al-Agsa Mosque ground. According to the stone inscription above one of the entrances
of this cistern, Al-Malik Al-Mu’zam Isa Bin Al-‘Adel Al-Ayyubi ordered to constructitin 1211-1210/607.
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Sabil Sha'lan

The sabil is formed of a small room, with the cistern-mouth in the middle of the room and a big water
trough covered with marble slabs on its western side. The sabil is located in the northwestern section of
Al-Agsa Mosque, to the north end of the pathway which leads from Bab Al-Nazir to the Dome of the Rock
plaza before boarding the steps of the North-western Colonnade. The saibl was founded by al-Malik al-
Mu’zam Isa (1227-1218/624-615), and restored on the time of Sultan Barsbay and the Vizier Bayram Pasha.
It has been repaired under the direction of Muhammad Pasha, the governor of Jerusalem. Therefore this
sabil is known by several names but dominated by the name of the person who was hired to serve the
sabil i.e. Sheikh Sha’lan. The sabil has a very beautiful dome similar to an umbrella.
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Sabil lbrathim al-Rumi

The architecture of the sabil is very simple; it consists of a square room topped by a shallow dome. A door
is opened in the east wall gives access to the room interior. Three windows are opened in the remaining
three sides where basins to contain water are located. This sabil is located to the northeast of al-Nazir gate,
just 10 meters away from it. The founder of the sabil is not known but is restored and renewed by Ibrahim
al Rumiin 1436-1435/839.The sabil is known by several names: Sabil‘Ala al-Din al-Basir, sabil of the person
gate, sabil Bab al-Nazir. The sabil is still functioning and its water is cooled by electric refrigerator placed
inside the sabil with taps to pour water for people.
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Sabif ch‘téwy/

Sabi Qaitbay is the nicest and most luxurious fountain of Jerusalem and Al-Agsa Mosque, The only way in
the Muslim world, which has the domes decorated from the outside (1482AD- 887 H))

it has a square room in the middle is the cistern outlet. The sabil is built with ablaq (alternate of colors)
and consists of three parts. The first is the body of the sabil, which is occupied by a room. Three large and
high windows were opened on and a door is to be found in the fourth east side. The second part is the
drum of the dome or the transition zone which four windows are seen. The third is a dome decorated
with a distinctive stone arabesque. The sabil is located in the courtyard of al-Agsa Mosque, between the
Ablution Gate and the Western Colonnade about 15 m form the Ashrafiyya Madrasa. Sultan al-Ashraf
Qaitbay (1496-1468-901-872) ordered the reconstruction of this sabil, he has sent a team of master
builders from Cairo. It was renovated again by abdelalhamid 11 in the nineteenth century The sabil is
active and cool water is drawn from a modern electric refrigerator stationed inside the room of the sabil.
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Sabil Rasem Pasha

Sail Qasem Pasha has a stone base, and above it an octagonal walled basin is built. The sabil is culminated
with a hemispherical pointed dome. This sabil is situated in the western part of the al-Agsa mosque to
the north-east of the Silsila Gate and south of Sabil Qaitbay. Qasem Pasha, the Ottoman governor of
Istanbul, constructed the sabil in the year 1525/932. This sabil was fed from Qanat al-Sabil (water channel)
connecting the way from Solomon»s Pools. Around the sabil are stone chairs for ablution reached through
descending steps. The sabil is covered by wooden canopy jointed with copper, obscure the heat of the
sun for its users. The sabil is active and attracts a large tract of the pioneers of the al Aqsa Mosque, where
they preform ablution.
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Sabil Birbat AL-S ultan

Sabil Birkat al-Sultanis one of the six water fountains that have survived from the project of Sultan Suleiman
the Magnificent in Jerusalem outside the wall. The project was a major plan to create nine fountains with
the reconstruction of the water channel extending from Bethlehem to Jerusalem. This sabil consists of a
mass niche wall built by dressed white stones of various sizes. A pointed arch is set above the niche, and
at its bottom is a trough to contain the water to be distributed to the passers-by and the wayfarers. This
style is a new Ottoman example in Jerusalem known as the wall niche. The sabil is located out of the Old
City Wall, in the south-west side where the road leads from Jerusalem to Bethlehem and Hebron.The area
is so vital to receive visitors to the city coming from the west and south sides. The sabil is established in
the Ottoman period, in the date of Muharram 29/943 of June. The fountain is not functioning anymore.
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Sabil ald-Wad

Itis one of the six fountains of Sultan Suleiman, formed from an architectural unit consisting a rectangular
recess topped with a pointed arch. And beneath the arch is an inscription panel where the titles of Sultan
Suleiman and the date of construction are inscribed. At the bottom of that panel is a stone trough to save
water, which was taken by passers-by. This fountain is situated in the eastern side of al-Wad (valley) road to
the south of the west gate of al- Qattanin market. The sabil is founded in 1 Rajab 14/943 December 1536.
Recently the sabil has been provided with water tube, cleaned, and restored by the Israeli authorities
despite protest from the Awqaf Administration for banning her team to do the needed restoration.
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Sabil Bak al-Silsile

The sabil is one of the fountains of sultan Suleiman, and it is made up of an architectural unit comprising
a wall rectangular niche topped by pointed arch. An inscription panel is set below the arch, where the
titles of Sultan Suleiman and the date of construction are inscribed. A stone rectangular trough is to be
found beneath the panel to save water to be delivered to the passers-by. The fabric of the sabil is very rich
of decorative motives of Islamic and reused elements such as the water basin. The sabil is located on the
west side of the open court yard which is in front Bab al-Silsila Gate (one of al-Agsa Mosque gates). The
sabil is named also as the sabil of Bab al-Silsila neighbourhood; it was constructed in the reign of sultan
Suleiman the magnificent in 22 Rajab 4/943 January 1537. It is not operative.
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Sabif gwf al-Neazir

The sabil is shaped form a niche (pediment) wall topped by an arch decorated by with floral and geometric
elements. The front of the niche is ornamented by circular stone, and directly beneath it is an inscription
panel written with Ottoman thuluth calligraphy. The rectangle trough that contains the water to be
distributed is below the panel. The sabil is located on the east side of the cross road where al-Wad road
meets with Bab al-Nazir and ‘Agabat al-Takiyya. This sabil is constructed during the reign of the Ottoman
Sultan Suleiman the Magnificent (1566-1520/974-926) in 2 Ramadan 12/943 February 1537. The sabil is
not active now, but it is described in the early twentieth century where it was in prosperous state as peace
of beauty and lust.
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Sabil Bab AL- ‘Aten

This sabil is like the rest of the fountains of Sultan Suleiman the Magnificent granted to Jerusalem. It is
composed of niche (pediment) wall topped by an arch decorated with forms and elements of floral and
geometric decoration. A circular derogative stone is found below the arch, and an inscription panel
written with Ottoman thuluth script is below it. A rectangle trough to contain the water to be distributed
is in lower part of the niche. The sabil is to be found inside al-Agsa Mosque on the north side between
Bab al-‘Atem and the Dome of the Prophet Muhammad lovers. The construction of this fountain and
the renovation of the Mihrab in the back took place in the month of Sha’ban 943/ January - February
1536. Other names of the sabil are the sabil of the Dome of the Prophet Muhammad lovers and the sabil
opposite the Dadawariyya Gate. Recently the sabil was restored and provided with ablution benches, it
still active.
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The sabil is made up of small architectural unit, in the same way as the rest of Sultan Suleiman wall
fountains. It consists of a rectangular recess topped with a pointed arch, and at the bottom of the stone
arch is a basin to contain the water, which was taken by passers-by. The original plaque which dates
the sabil is lost, but replaced by a modern panel of the same content by the Department of Islamic
Archaeology in 1982, depending on the historical sources of architecture. The sabil is situated on the
eastern side of the Mujahideen road, about 10 meters to the west of the Lions Gate, which is known as
the Gate our lady Mary. It was constructed in the reign of the Ottoman Sultan Suleiman the Magnificent
in the year 1536/943. The sabil is non-operative and some its architecture and decorative elements have
been corrosion, and regrettably the basin of this sabil is used for waste collection.
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Seabil Bk ad-Megharibe,

Sabil Bab al-Maghariba consists of one room square in plan and covered by a shallow dome. A door is
opened in the eastern wall which leads to the room interior where the mouth of the cistern is found.
Windows are opened in the rest of the room walls; they are preceded with basins to contain the water.
The sabil is located in the west southern side of al-Agsa Mosque about 15 m east of Maghariba Gate. It
was constructed by the Judge Ahmad Afendi al-Kutahi (1541-1571/987-948) in the Ottoman period. The
sabil still functioning though water is not distrusted to the basins. Many names are given to this sabil in
addition to the above mentioned one, such as sabil Jami’ al-Malikiyya, and sabil bi'r ak-Qubba.
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Al -Husseini Fountain

Located in the northern side of Al-Nahawiya School. Its walls were destroyed, however there marks are

still visible. Moreover, a scripture on the front side of Al-Nahawiya School refer to the year of establishing
the fountain 1137 Hijri\ 1724.
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Sabil Mustafe Aghe

The Sabil building consists of a square base carrying four small decorated columns which support three
arches on the northern, western, and southern sides, however, the eastern side is a blocked wall. The
horseshoe arches support a small dome which has recently been covered with stone. The sabil is located
in the northwestern section of al-Agsa mosque, about 20 meters to the south-eastern section of the
Inspector gate. Mustafa Agha Brawna Zade, governor of Jerusalem (district officer), has built this sabil
in 1741-1740/1153. Furthermore it contains decorations that reflect the content of the verses of poetry.
A group of poetry verses are inscribed on the foundation inscription. They clarify the motivation of
building in addition to have decorative elements which reflect the content of the poetry. The sabil is not
functioning, it is restored by Awgaf Administration, and it is named as sabil al-Budairi or sabil al-sheikh
Budair.
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